
06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
1 

COMMITTEE ON JOINT SCHOOL BUILDINGS 
 

June 26, 2002                                                                                               6:15 PM 
 
 
Chairman Herbert called the meeting to order. 
 
The Clerk called the roll. 
 
Present: Aldermen Pinard, Garrity, Thibault 
  School Committee Member Herbert 
 
Absent: School Committee Members Paradis and Beaudry 
 
Messrs.: Arthur Adamakos, Tim Clougherty 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 3 of the agenda: 
 
 3. Minutes of a meeting held on May 28, 2002. 
 
On motion of Alderman Pinard, duly seconded by Alderman Thibault, it was voted 
to accept the minutes as submitted. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 4 of the agenda: 
 
 4. ADA Accessibility/School Elevators – 
  Parker-Varney Elevator/ADA Improvements 
  a) Project Financial Reports (attached);and 
  b) Architect’s Status Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the Parker-Varney School is still in the process of being 
closed out, we’re having some difficulty getting some documentation from the 
contractor but again all the work there is 100% complete, it’s merely a status 
report there’s no action required. 
 
Chairman Herbert asked has this come in just about where you expected, looks 
like it? 
 
Alderman Pinard asked who’s the contractor? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied yes it did, it’s Pilot Construction. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
2 

 
Alderman Pinard asked what was the difficulty that you’re having with that 
company? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied paperwork…consent assurety, release of liens, things like 
that. 
 
Alderman Pinard asked is that important to you? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied it’s very important to me.  We’re withholding $18,000 on 
the contractor, so it’s in his best interest to forward the paperwork. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 5 of the agenda: 
 
 5. NORESCO Performance Contract – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the Energy Efficiency Conservation Project is on there 
again for informational purposes.  We’re still waiting to closeout the project based 
on executed maintenance agreement with the School District and NORESCO the 
contractor. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated this is the issue that you’re waiting for Ron to do 
something, right. 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied I believe Mr. Chapman is the individual responsible for 
executing that contract. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated wasn’t this the same thing we said at the last meeting we 
had a month ago. 
 
Alderman Pinard asked how long has this been dragging? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied it’s been open for quite some time. 
 
Alderman Thibault asked is there a problem? 
 
Alderman Pinard stated I’ve been here four years and it seems to me that 
NORESCO has always been here. 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated I can’t speak to why it hasn’t been executed, I think that 
question is better answered by him. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
3 

 
Chairman Herbert asked, Arthur, you don’t have any knowledge of this situation 
do you? 
 
Mr. Adamakos replied not the contractual part of it. 
 
Alderman Thibault asked is there a way we could find out, Arthur, so that we can 
move along, maybe send the Committee or the Chairman a letter so we know 
where we’re at with it. 
 
Mr. Adamakos stated he will follow-up. 
 
Alderman Garrity moved that a request be made of Mr. Chapman for an update of 
this project.  Alderman Pinard duly seconded the motion.  There being none 
opposed, the motion carried. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 6 of the agenda: 
 
 6. Roofing Projects – Manchester Schools – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached); and 
  b) Consultant’s Status Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the reroofing and repointing projects…as you can see there 
are several on this sheet.  They date back all of two fiscal years now and I will 
have it cleaned up for next month to only show the current projects and the current 
funding.  Currently, we have the Hallsville and Wilson Schools where we’re 
replacing some asphalt shingles, some flat roofing section and doing some gutter 
repairs at both of those schools.  We’re also doing some masonry repointing and 
reconstruction at both locations.  Those projects are both underway and the 
contractor’s doing a very good job.  We’re also reroofing the Practical Arts 
Building at Central High School.  Again, the contractor has stocked the job and 
he’s beginning to tear off the old roof and we’re expecting completion on both 
those jobs on or about the time that school gets back into session. 
 
Chairman Herbert in reference to the Classical Building stated it notes that it did 
not accept bids. 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated we did not accept the bids on the Classical Arts Building.  
We put it out to bid, it came in significantly over budget, we value engineered the 
job per our consultant’s direction, put it out to bid again and they came in even 
higher.  I think a lot of it had to do with the time frame that we were working with, 
given the approval of the CIP and the availability of masonry and slate type  



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
4 

 
contractors is a very specialized labor at that project.  So, what we’ve done is any 
areas that required immediate addressing I’m working with the contractor at the 
Practical Arts Building to issue a change order to address those and any of the 
other items we’re retooling and trying to decide exactly how we’re going to 
address them in the future. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated given the specialty needs of that particular roof which is 
kind of a neat roof, but… 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated it’s a beautiful roof unfortunately they don’t make roofs like 
that anymore, so you don’t have anybody that builds them…correspondingly, you 
don’t have anyone that repairs them. 
 
Chairman Herbert asked is the basic idea to get it so it will go through the next 
year and then maybe line up specialty… 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied that’s the idea.  We’re thinking about possibly rebidding 
around the beginning of the calendar year…January time frame. 
 
Alderman Pinard stated last night I attended a NHDOT meeting at McLaughlin 
and asked are they working on the Greens Acres School roof? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied yes that is part of the Sound Insulation Program. 
 
Alderman Pinard stated while we were having that meeting at McLaughlin last 
night noting they’re soundproofing Green Acres…we could hear the planes and 
while the guy was making his presentation he had to stop…that’s how loud the 
airplanes were.  Can you look into that? 
 
Mr. Clougherty asked were the windows open in the cafeteria? 
 
Alderman Pinard replied the planes were so loud we couldn’t hear him.  You ask 
Kevin he was sitting there with me.  Could you check into that? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied I have checked into that in the past, I believe it was a 
request of this Committee that I look into seeing whether the soundproofing 
measures were instituted when the McLaughlin Middle School was constructed 
and from all indications that I could receive that I could find, it was soundproofed 
per the Airport’s recommendations. 
 
Alderman Pinard stated talk to Kevin tomorrow morning…we could hear those 
plans very loudly. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
5 

 
Alderman Thibault stated that’s a good point but don’t forget that within the next 6 
or 7 months you will no longer have that noise because they’ll go back to the other 
runway. 
 
Alderman Pinard reiterated I think we should look into it and get somebody that 
knows and take advantage as they’re doing Green Acres School. 
 
Alderman Thibault stated I thought Tim said they did.  Once the planes go back to 
where they’re supposed to go you will no longer have that noise up there and if 
they’ve already looked at that school for that like Tim is saying, I don’t know what 
you want us to do, but I’d be happy to do whatever you’d like, Alderman. 
 
Alderman Pinard stated it’s not the idea of what I want, it’s the idea that…and I 
understand what you’re saying the noise, but those runways are going to be there 
and they’re going to be used all the time, so if what was done then the job was 
poorly done, so I think we should look into it. 
 
Mr. Clougherty asked have we had any complaints from Mr. Albert or any of the 
other faculty at McLaughlin Middle School? 
 
Chairman Herbert replied we haven’t heard anything. 
 
Mr. Adamakos replied I haven’t heard a thing. 
 
Alderman Pinard stated I was there, I heard it and I’m bringing it up for a reason 
so we can look into it and see what’s going on. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 7 of the agenda: 
 
 7. McLaughlin Middle School Addition – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached); and 
  b) Architect’s Status Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the addition is going very well.  We’re looking to closeout 
the project as soon as possible.  Unfortunately, when the portable trailers were 
removed from the rear of the building there was more damage to the parking lot 
than we had anticipated.  There were some areas that were washed out, I met with 
the contractor last week to redefine their scope of work in order to reconstruct that 
loop road and the access road to the north parking lot so that we can restore it to its 
original new condition rather than just patch and repair it. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
6 

 
Alderman Thibault stated one thing that bothers me when I look at this…we’re 
talking about a $3.5 million project, are we encumbering enough money to make 
sure that they finish these projects…no so much on time, but in a decent time.  
We’re only encumbering what $45,000 on a $3.5 million project.  Am I right, 
amount encumbered $45,496. 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied I’m not sure what you’re interpretation of the amount 
encumbered is.  The amount we’ve actually spent is $3.529 million. 
 
Alderman Thibault stated I’m looking at the amount that is encumbered, does that 
mean that amount is the last amount that the City will pay him. 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied no that is the column on the far right, the Retainage 
Held…that’s $81,000. 
 
Alderman Thibault stated okay, I’m sorry, I see it. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated for the Committee information…the perimeter road on 
the north side of McLaughlin…have you been around it…they’re going to make 
that the permanent perimeter road…that takes the traffic away from the building, it 
also gives easier access to the backside of the parking lot…that was in front of the 
Buildings and Sites Committee. 
 
Alderman Thibault stated I’m not sure what you’re saying. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated when they were taking out the portables they made a 
temporary perimeter road that went out a little further and they decides they liked 
it better than they did the other traffic pattern, so they came to Buildings and Sites 
last night and said we’d like to make this the permanent perimeter and got 
approval from us.  It’s not a big deal but it’s just an item and works out better as it 
turns out. 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 8 of the agenda: 
 
 8. Central High H&V Phase 6 and Window Replacement – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the status of this project is pretty much the same as the 
Parker-Varney Elevator, the project is complete and we’re waiting for paperwork 
from the contractor.  I know the consultant has been conversing with him several 
times over the phone over the past few days because invoices are due, so he’s 
really looking forward to getting his paper work so he can get paid. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
7 

 
Alderman Garrity asked this is Phase 6, how many phases are there? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied Phase 6 is the last phase.  There was an additional phase 
scheduled but we’ve rolled it into the Design/Build Project. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated that has been just a massive effort. 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated it grew.  I think there were some inaccuracies in the 
definition of scope when that was first conceptualized, but it’s definitely an 
improvement to all three high schools. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 9 of the agenda: 
 
 9. Bakersville Kindergarten & Electrical Improvements – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached); 
  b) Architect’s Status Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the project is going very well.  The contractor was on sight, 
actually mobilized the Saturday after the children were let out for the summer 
vacation and had the parking lot torn up by mid-morning on Monday and they’re 
moving along very quickly.  They’ve actually got what will be the new expanded 
parking lot based paved as well as the expanded playground based paved and 
they’ll begin excavating for the foundation for the kindergarten probably by the 
end of the week.  They’ve got quite a lot of equipment on site, it’s pretty 
impressive. 
 
Alderman Garrity asked about the completion date. 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied November 15th. 
 
Alderman Garrity asked are you confident with that date? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied yes I am.  I have been given no indication not to feel 
confident and if I get that I will let the Committee know. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 10 of the agenda: 
 
10. Southside Middle Classroom Addition & Hallsville Bathroom Renovations  
  a) Project Financial Report (attached); and 
  b) Architect’s Status Reports (attached). 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
8 

 
Mr. Clougherty stated the contractor has started…pretty much the same as 
Bakersville.  They were in there following right behind the students.  The 
Hallsville basement is completely torn apart, ready for the construction portion to 
begin. 
 
Chairman Herbert asked is this the same situation, did they get right into it? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied yes the classroom at Southside have the plastic barriers on 
either sides of the area kind of adjacent to the stairwells and the entire area is 
gutted, they removed all of the concrete masonry unit walls and I believe they’re 
going to begin framing the entire walls for those classrooms tomorrow. 
 
Chairman Herbert asked are there portables over there? 
 
Mr. Adamakos replied they’re the same size as Hillside and were built in ’95 and 
they’re so short on space. 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the additions that are currently programmed through the 
Design/Build Project should alleviate the need for the portable classrooms at both 
those locations. 
 
Chairman Herbert commented that would be so nice. 
 
 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 11 of the agenda: 
 
11. Highland Goffs Falls & Parker-Varney Flooring Replacement – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached); and 
  b) Status Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated again the contractor followed right behind the children.  I 
believe at both locations the demolition portion of the existing carpet is complete, 
they’re wrapping up the asbestos abatement portion and they’ve started laying the 
new flooring at Highland Goffs Falls.  So, once again, we expect that to be 
complete on or about August 15th. 
 
Alderman Thibault asked both schools, Tim? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied yes. 
 
Chairman Herbert stated we’re getting cracker jack outfits here. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
9 

 
Chairman Herbert addressed item 12 of the agenda: 
 
12. Memorial High School Media Center – 
  a) Project Financial Report (attached); and 
  b) Architect’s Status Report (attached). 
 
Mr. Clougherty stated the Media Center is currently out for bid to the contractors; 
that our bid date is July 10th and we’ve been working with Mr. Adamakos, Mr. 
Hammond and his staff in order to accommodate all of the various requests that 
we have for fit up of that area and anticipate completion of that somewhere around 
the end of February or the middle of March of next year.  We got delayed a little 
bit.  Fortunately, the School District was able to work with us in order to 
accommodate the construction.  As far as we’re concerned, we’ll do the 
construction anytime, but it’s a disruption to their operations so we want to try and 
minimize, so fortunately we’re able to minimize to come to agreement with what 
kind of disruption could be accommodate and we’ve built that into the schedule 
and gone over that with the contractor’s and haven’t heard a lot of opposition…it 
will create some more costs on our end, but overall it will be more beneficial to 
Memorial High School and their students. 
 
Chairman Herbert asked how will this affect the budget, Tim? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied we don’t know just yet, I’ll let you know on July 10th as to 
whether the bids come in within budget. 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 CIP Projects -- 
 
Chairman Herbert in reference to the CIP Projects asked to date are we…I know 
over time we sometimes end up with additional cash, how do we stand on the 
projects that we’ve been doing the last couple of years.  I know a couple of times 
we have come up with some additional monies.  I think we did some architectural 
work with…how are we doing? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied we’re not running a deficit in any of the bonds over the 
past couple of years.  We’ve been able to take advantage of any of the surpluses 
that were in there to accomplish other projects.  I came to the Committee earlier, I 
believe January/February time frame and we reallocated some of the surpluses 
from asbestos projects and we took care of the Beech Street School food storage 
area that was deficient in its structure and we were able to push some of that  



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
10 

 
money forward to the current flooring projects, so you’ll see that.  We also took 
$250,000 out of the contingency of the McLaughlin Middle School in order to 
accomplish the design services for the projects that we’re reporting on today for 
FY03 as well as to bring on some of the consultants for the Design/Build Project.  
So, overall we’re doing very well. 
 
 
 Design/Build Project -- 
 
Alderman Garrity stated we keep talking about Design/Build none of these 
projects are part of the Design/Build, right? 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied correct, those are all funded through the FY03 CIP. 
 
Alderman Garrity stated besides the $250,000 that we funded through the BMA 
has there been any action on Design/Build or anything? 
 
Mr. Clougherty asked what do you mean by action? 
 
Alderman Garrity replied “action” meaning meetings or plans or anything like 
that. 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied there’s been a significant amount.  I’ve been working on 
that a very substantial portion of my time.  We put out what was called an 
“Expression of Interest and Qualifications” and published it, received interest from 
four (4) contractors, we’ve interviewed those four contractors, we’re in the process 
of reinterviewing them and planning on issuing a draft of the “Request for 
Proposals” this week in order to allow them an opportunity to see exactly what 
we’re expecting in the package to receive some feedback from them and we’re 
expecting to have the RFP out toward the end of the summer. 
 
Alderman Garrity stated that was funded through the $250,000 that the BMA took 
action on. 
 
Mr. Clougherty replied correct.  There’s architectural consultants, there’s legal 
consultants, insurance consultants and engineers all involved with the generation 
of the “Request for Proposals” that will be an extremely comprehensive document. 
 
Alderman Garrity asked for an estimated time when any proposals or anything of 
that nature is going to be in front of the Board of School Committee or the Board 
of Mayor and Aldermen. 



06/26/02 Jt. School Bldgs. 
11 

 
Mr. Clougherty replied we’re looking at mid-fall, probably the late October time 
frame. 
 
 
There being no further business to come before the Committee, on motion of 
Alderman Pinard, duly seconded by Alderman Thibault, it was voted to adjourn. 
 
A True Record.  Attest. 
 
 
 
        Clerk of Committee 


